
 
City of Mission 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, July 15, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 
Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson 

 
If you require any accommodations (i.e. qualified interpreter, large print, reader, hearing assistance) in                           
order to attend this meeting, please notify the Administrative Office at 9136768350 no later than 24                               
hours prior to the beginning of the meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

● Abby Sostarich, Life Saving Award 
● Proclamation  Parks & Recreation Month 

 
2.  ISSUANCE OF NOTES AND BONDS 
 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
NOTE:  Information on consent agenda items has been provided to the Governing Body.  These                           
items are determined to be routine enough to be acted on in a single motion; however, this                                 
does not preclude discussion.  If a councilmember requests, an item may be removed                         
from the consent agenda for further consideration and separate motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  GENERAL 
 
3a.    Minutes of the June 17, 2015 City Council Meeting and  

Minutes of the July 8, 2015 Special City Council Meeting 
  
CONSENT AGENDA  Finance & Administration Committee 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 7115 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 7115 
 
3b. Unite Private Networks Franchise Agreement 
3c. Consolidated Fire District #2 & IAFF Local 1371 Street Solicitation Application 
3d. Resolution Designating Surplus Property 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  Community Development Committee 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 7115  
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 7115  

 
 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Approved Minutes from Board and Commission meetings are available on the  
City of Mission website under the “Agendas & Minutes” tab. 

 

http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6065
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6062
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6062
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6105
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6065
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6023
http://missionks.org/agenda.aspx


4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
5.  ACTION ITEMS 
 

Planning Commission 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance & Administration, Arcie Rothrock 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 7115 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 7115 
 

  
Community Development, Pat Quinn 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 7115 
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 7115 

 
6a. 2015 Street Program  Chip Seal Contract Award 
6b. 2015 Street Program  Mill & Overlay Contract Award 
6c. Herald Corner (Brinshore) Development Agreement  
 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
9.  MAYOR'S REPORT 
 

Appointments 
 
10.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6062
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6062
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6065
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6065


 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6a. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  6/24/2015 

PUBLIC WORKS  From:  John Belger 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: 2015 Chip Seal Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve a contract with Harbour Construction for the completion 
of chip seal application for an amount not to exceed $87,493.37. 
 
DETAILS:   On Tuesday, June 16th, staff received bids from contractors for the 2015 
Chip Seal Program. The bid results were as follows: 
 

Bidder Total Bid 
Harbour Construction  $87,493.37 

Vance Brothers  $87,734.87 
  
 
The Chip Seal Program focuses on preserving the streets that are already in good 
condition and extending their useful life. It is a critical component of the City's 
comprehensive annual street maintenance program.  Our streets are constantly 
deteriorating, and a proactive seal program helps maintain good streets so more 
expensive repairs can be avoided for as long as possible. 
 
The 2015 program, as bid, will chip seal approximately 5.7 lane miles of street. A map 
of the proposed chip seal locations is attached.  
 
The bid documents submitted by Harbour Construction as well as the proposed contract 
documents are attached. The contractor will have a 60 day window to perform the work 
after the finalized contract documents are signed by both parties. 
 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:  Ordinance 1332 

Line Item Code/Description:  039080111 Special Highway Fund 

Available Budget:  $280,000 

 



NALL AVE

LAMAR AVE

W 69TH ST

W 67TH ST

ROE AVE

W 55TH ST

JOHNSON DR

W 57TH ST

W 51ST ST

MARTWAY STRE
ED

S R
D

MARTY ST

FOSTER ST

FLOYD ST

N I35 HWY

ROE BLVD

S I35 HWY FOXRIDGE DR

W 58TH ST

METCALF AVE

W 70TH TER

W 61ST ST

OU
TL

OO
K S

T

SANTA FE DR

WO
OD

SO
N 

ST

W 53RD ST

MA
PL

E S
T

W 69TH TER

W 63RD ST
SHAWNEE MISSION PKWY

WALMER ST

ROE LN

W 70TH ST

HODGES DR
ASH DR

BIRCH ST

W 66TH TER

GLENWOOD ST

BEVERLY AVE

W 68TH ST

METCALF LN

W 62ND ST

RE
ED

S D
R

JUNIPER ST

ROSEWOOD DR

W 64TH ST

W 50TH TER

W 61ST TER

W 65TH TER

W 64TH TER

BEVERLY ST

NEWTON ST

MILHAVEN DR

FRONTAGE RD

ASH ST

BR
OA

DM
OO

R 
ST

ROELAND DR

W 60TH ST

W 60
TH

 TE
R

OUTLOOK DR

BEVERLY DR

W 52ND ST

W 63RD TER

FONTICELLO ST
SHERW

OOD DR

ALDER DR

MAPLE DR

W 65TH ST

W 71ST ST

BRIAR ST

WOODSON DR

BEVERLY LN

SKYLINE DRJIM BILLS RD

SYCAMORE DR

W 67TH TER

RIGGS ST

W 54TH ST

GRANADA ST

MERRIAM DR

ROSEWOOD ST

SQUIBB RD

MA
RT

Y L
N

ROBINSON ST

N I635 HWY

W 53RD TER

W 62ND TER

W 66TH ST

DEARBORN ST

W 59TH ST

NALL DR

18TH ST EXY

W 52ND TER

W 49TH ST

FONTANA ST

W 54TH TERLINDEN ST

DEARBORN DR

ACCESS RD

JU
NIPER

 DR

RI
GG

S A
VE

HORTON ST

RUSSELL ST

BUENA VISTA ST

ELLEDGE DR

DELMAR ST

W 47TH TER

CLARK DR

GRANADA LN

BA
RK

LE
Y S

T

GRANADA DR
GRANADA RD

ROE PKWY

ROCK CREE
K L

N

W 47TH ST

W 51ST TER

W 50TH ST

CEDAR ST

W 65TH PL

RI
LE

Y S
T

W 53RD PL

S I635 HWY

W 52ND PL

HORTON DR

W 55TH TER W 56TH ST

W 57TH TER

CONSER ST

W 56TH TER

EL MONTE ST

SOUTHRIDGE STW 51ST PL

W 50TH PL

W 59TH TER

W 58TH TER

W 68TH TER

KE
NN

ET
T P

L

W 55TH PL

W 50TH ST

W 63RD TER

REEDS RD

W 49TH ST

WOODSON ST

W 49TH ST

W 55TH TER

W 58TH ST

GR
AN

AD
A R

D

LINDEN ST

EL
 M

ON
TE

 S
T

RI
GG

S 
ST

LIN
DE

N 
ST

W 62ND TER

W 57TH TER

GLENWOOD ST

W 54TH ST
RUSSELL ST

W 56TH ST

W 66TH ST

W 59TH TER

FONTANA ST

RUSSELL ST

REEDS RD

W 64TH TER

BRIAR ST

GR
AN

AD
A L

N

BARKLEY ST

AC
CE

SS
 R

D

CEDAR ST

W 55TH ST

W 50TH TER

FLOYD ST

DEARBORN ST

W 71ST ST

W 62ND ST

ACCESS RD

W 64TH ST

W 
49

TH
 S

T

OUTLOOK ST
W 52ND PL

W 66TH TER

W 54TH TER

W 49TH ST

HO
RT

ON
 ST

WALMER ST

ASH ST

BROADMOOR ST

RIGGS ST

ROELAND DR

W 62ND ST

W 70TH ST

WALMER ST

W 63RD TER

FONTANA ST

OUTLOOK ST

W 53RD TER

W 65TH ST

W 65TH TER

JUNIPER ST

BIR
CH

 ST

RO
SE

WO
OD

 ST

RUSSELL ST

HORTON ST

W 57TH TER

WALMER ST

18TH ST EXY

GR
AN

AD
A L

N

W 67TH ST

AS
H 

ST

W 51ST ST

BIR
CH

 ST

W 54TH ST

BARKLEY ST

SYCAMORE DR

MARTY ST

RU
SS

EL
L S

T LINDEN ST

GLENWOOD ST

LINDEN ST

W 62ND TER

DE
AR

BO
RN

 ST

MAPLE ST

W 60TH TER
RILEY ST

W 65TH TER

W 54TH ST

W 61ST ST

W 
49

TH
 S

T

CE
DA

R 
ST

DEARBORN ST

MA
RT

Y S
T

RILEY ST

NEWTON ST RIGGS ST

W 62ND ST

BROADMOOR ST

W 58TH ST

W 61ST ST

W 65TH TER

W 62ND ST

W 66TH ST

W 55TH TER

ACCESS RD

W 54TH ST

W 64TH ST

W 54TH TER

W 47TH ST

W 64TH ST

FOSTER ST
RILEY ST

W 66TH TER

CE
DA

R 
ST

REEDS RD

MA
PL

E S
T

WOODSON ST

W 60TH ST

W 65TH ST

HORTON ST

NE
WT

ON
 ST

W 61ST ST

W 68TH ST

GRANADA ST

RIGGS ST

DELMAR ST

W 66TH TER

W 68TH ST

W 66TH ST

W 61ST TER

Legend
Chip Seal

2015 Chip Seal Program



























































































 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6b. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  6/24/2015 

PUBLIC WORKS  From:  John Belger 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: 2015 Mill & Overlay Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve a contract with Little Joe’s Asphalt for the completion of 
the 2015 Mill & Overlay Program in an amount not to exceed $171,961.47. 
 
DETAILS: On Tuesday, June 16th, staff received bids from contractors for the 2015 Mill 
& Overlay Program. The bid results were as follows: 
 

Bidder Total Bid 

KS Heavy Construction  $205,946.37 

Freeman Concrete Construction  $204,125.04 

O'Donnell and Sons  $190,249.08 

Little Joe's Asphalt  $171,961.47 
 
 
The Mill & Overlay Program focuses on repairing those streets with damaged surface 
asphalt which on the cusp of complete disrepair. It is one of two intermediate 
maintenance treatments the City uses to extend the life of the aging street infrastructure 
system. 
 
If approved, this contract will mill & overlay approximately 1 lane mile of road, replace 
approximately 2000 linear feet of curb, replace 3500 square feet of sidewalk and make 
any necessary ADA improvements. 
 
The bid documents submitted by Little Joe’s as well as the proposed contract 
documents are attached. The contractor will have a 60 day window to perform the work 
after the finalized contract documents are signed by both parties. 
 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:  Ordinance 1332 

Line Item Code/Description:  039080111 Special Highway Fund 

Available Budget:  $280,000 

 



NALL AVE

LAMAR AVE

W 69TH ST

W 67TH ST

ROE AVE

W 55TH ST

JOHNSON DR

W 57TH ST

W 51ST ST

MARTWAY STRE
ED

S R
D

MARTY ST

FOSTER ST

FLOYD ST

N I35 HWY

ROE BLVD

S I35 HWY FOXRIDGE DR

W 58TH ST

METCALF AVE

W 70TH TER

W 61ST ST

OU
TL

OO
K S

T

SANTA FE DR

WO
OD

SO
N 

ST

W 53RD ST

MA
PL

E S
T

W 69TH TER

W 63RD ST
SHAWNEE MISSION PKWY

WALMER ST

ROE LN

W 70TH ST

HODGES DR
ASH DR

BIRCH ST

W 66TH TER

GLENWOOD ST

BEVERLY AVE

W 68TH ST

METCALF LN

W 62ND ST

RE
ED

S D
R

JUNIPER ST

ROSEWOOD DR

W 64TH ST

W 50TH TER

W 61ST TER

W 65TH TER

W 64TH TER

BEVERLY ST

NEWTON ST

MILHAVEN DR

FRONTAGE RD

ASH ST

BR
OA

DM
OO

R 
ST

ROELAND DR

W 60TH ST

W 60
TH

 TE
R

OUTLOOK DR

BEVERLY DR

W 52ND ST

W 63RD TER

FONTICELLO ST
SHERW

OOD DR

ALDER DR

MAPLE DR

W 65TH ST

W 71ST ST

BRIAR ST

WOODSON DR

BEVERLY LN

SKYLINE DRJIM BILLS RD

SYCAMORE DR

W 67TH TER

RIGGS ST

W 54TH ST

GRANADA ST

MERRIAM DR

ROSEWOOD ST

SQUIBB RD

MA
RT

Y L
N

ROBINSON ST

N I635 HWY

W 53RD TER

W 62ND TER

W 66TH ST

DEARBORN ST

W 59TH ST

NALL DR

18TH ST EXY

W 52ND TER

W 49TH ST

FONTANA ST

W 54TH TERLINDEN ST

DEARBORN DR

ACCESS RD

JU
NIPER

 DR

RI
GG

S A
VE

HORTON ST

RUSSELL ST

BUENA VISTA ST

ELLEDGE DR

DELMAR ST

W 47TH TER

CLARK DR

GRANADA LN

BA
RK

LE
Y S

T

GRANADA DR
GRANADA RD

ROE PKWY

ROCK CREE
K L

N

W 47TH ST

W 51ST TER

W 50TH ST

CEDAR ST

W 65TH PL

RI
LE

Y S
T

W 53RD PL

S I635 HWY

W 52ND PL

HORTON DR

W 55TH TER W 56TH ST

W 57TH TER

CONSER ST

W 56TH TER

EL MONTE ST

SOUTHRIDGE STW 51ST PL

W 50TH PL

W 59TH TER

W 58TH TER

W 68TH TER

KE
NN

ET
T P

L

W 55TH PL

W 50TH ST

W 63RD TER

REEDS RD

W 49TH ST

WOODSON ST

W 49TH ST

W 55TH TER

W 58TH ST

GR
AN

AD
A R

D

LINDEN ST

EL
 M

ON
TE

 S
T

RI
GG

S 
ST

LIN
DE

N 
ST

W 62ND TER

W 57TH TER

GLENWOOD ST

W 54TH ST
RUSSELL ST

W 56TH ST

W 66TH ST

W 59TH TER

FONTANA ST

RUSSELL ST

REEDS RD

W 64TH TER

BRIAR ST

GR
AN

AD
A L

N

BARKLEY ST

AC
CE

SS
 R

D

CEDAR ST

W 55TH ST

W 50TH TER

FLOYD ST

DEARBORN ST

W 71ST ST

W 62ND ST

ACCESS RD

W 64TH ST

W 
49

TH
 S

T

OUTLOOK ST
W 52ND PL

W 66TH TER

W 54TH TER

W 49TH ST

HO
RT

ON
 ST

WALMER ST

ASH ST

BROADMOOR ST

RIGGS ST

ROELAND DR

W 62ND ST

W 70TH ST

WALMER ST

W 63RD TER

FONTANA ST

OUTLOOK ST

W 53RD TER

W 65TH ST

W 65TH TER

JUNIPER ST

BIR
CH

 ST

RO
SE

WO
OD

 ST

RUSSELL ST

HORTON ST

W 57TH TER

WALMER ST

18TH ST EXY

GR
AN

AD
A L

N

W 67TH ST

AS
H 

ST

W 51ST ST

BIR
CH

 ST

W 54TH ST

BARKLEY ST

SYCAMORE DR

MARTY ST

RU
SS

EL
L S

T LINDEN ST

GLENWOOD ST

LINDEN ST

W 62ND TER

DE
AR

BO
RN

 ST

MAPLE ST

W 60TH TER
RILEY ST

W 65TH TER

W 54TH ST

W 61ST ST

W 
49

TH
 S

T

CE
DA

R 
ST

DEARBORN ST

MA
RT

Y S
T

RILEY ST

NEWTON ST RIGGS ST

W 62ND ST

BROADMOOR ST

W 58TH ST

W 61ST ST

W 65TH TER

W 62ND ST

W 66TH ST

W 55TH TER

ACCESS RD

W 54TH ST

W 64TH ST

W 54TH TER

W 47TH ST

W 64TH ST

FOSTER ST
RILEY ST

W 66TH TER

CE
DA

R 
ST

REEDS RD

MA
PL

E S
T

WOODSON ST

W 60TH ST

W 65TH ST

HORTON ST

NE
WT

ON
 ST

W 61ST ST

W 68TH ST

GRANADA ST

RIGGS ST

DELMAR ST

W 66TH TER

W 68TH ST

W 66TH ST

W 61ST TER

Legend
Mill & Overlay

2015 Mill & Overlay Program































































































 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6c. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  June 26, 2015 

Administration   From:  Laura Smith 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Real Estate Purchase and PreDevelopment Agreement (Brinshore Development) for City 
Owned Property at 7080 Martway Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Third Amendment to the Real Estate Purchase and 
PreDevelopment Agreement with Brinshore Developers, LLC. 
 
DETAILS: The City was recently notified by Brinshore Development, LLC that they were not 
awarded 2015 Low Income Housing Tax Credits for the “Herald Corner” project. According to the 
developer, the State indicated that the project scored well but that there were eight other similar 
proposals submitted throughout the state that had lower per unit total development costs. 
 
Brinshore met with KHRC staff in early June to discuss the results of their application. Brinshore                               
has indicated a desire address per unit costs in their pro forma and to resubmit in the 2016                                   
application cycle. They have asked for the City to consider extending the purchase and                           
predevelopment agreement for another year. Based on Council discussion at the June                       
Committee meeting, an amendment has been drafted that would extend the contract through July                           
1, 2016 with the following conditions:   
 

● If housing tax credits are awarded, on or before July 1, 2106, the closing date shall be on or                                     
before November 1, 2016. 

● City has right to entertain other offers up to November 15, 2015. If an acceptable offer is                                 
received within that period, Brinshore will be provided notice of same and have the                           
opportunity to proceed to closing. If they (Brinshore) did not timely elect to close, the                             
agreement would terminate and all refundable monies would be returned. 

● Agreement would become exclusive to Brinshore after November 15, 2015 in order to allow                           
them to proceed with a tax credit application. 

● In consideration for the amendment, Brinshore would deposit an additional sum of Earnest                         
Money into escrow, which would be nonrefundable except in the event of Seller default or                             
failure by Brinshore to elect to proceed to closing if given notice of another offer prior to                                 
November 15, 2015. 

 
The specific contract amendment language is currently being reviewed by Brinshore and will be                           
distributed in a supplemental packet early next week. 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:  N/A 

Line Item Code/Description:  N/A 

Available Budget:  N/A 

 



24134190v1  

THIRD AMENDMENT TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE 
AND PRE-DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS  THIRD AMENDMENT TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND PRE-
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, effective as of the date of execution by all parties hereto, 
by and between the CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS, a Kansas municipal corporation ("City") 
and  BRINSHORE DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a limited liability company ("Purchaser"), 
amends, supplements and, to the extent inconsistent herewith, supersedes that certain “Real 
Estate Purchase and Pre-Development Agreement", dated of March 19, 2014, as amended 
(“Agreement”). All capitalized terms herein are as defined in the Agreement. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the parties have heretofore executed the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Purchaser was unsuccessful in receiving housing tax credits from the 
Kansas Housing Resources Corporation in 2015, and wishes to extend the term of the Agreement 
to afford it the opportunity to apply for such tax credits in 2016; and 

WHEREAS, City is willing to so extend the term of the Agreement on the terms and 
conditions set forth herein.  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, it is agreed: 

1. That this Amendment shall supplement, amend and, to the extent inconsistent 
herewith, supersede the Agreement.  

2. That the parties agree that the Inspection Period is hereby extended to July 1, 2016, 
to allow Purchaser to pursue obtaining housing tax credits for the proposed project on the Premises. 
In the event such housing tax credits are awarded Purchaser on or before July 1, 2016, the Closing 
date shall be on or before November 1, 2016. In the event that such housing tax credits are not 
awarded to Purchaser on or before July 1, 2016, this Agreement shall terminate and all refundable 
monies deposited in escrow by Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall be promptly returned 
to Developer. 

3. Anything in the Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, City shall have the 
right to entertain offers to purchase the Premises up to November 15, 2015. In the event an 
acceptable offer to purchase is received prior to such date by the City, it shall so notify Purchaser 
in writing. Purchaser shall have fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice to deliver to the City 
an election in writing to proceed to closing within thirty (30) days from the date of such election. 
In the event Purchaser fails to timely elect to close, this Agreement shall terminate and all 
refundable monies deposited in escrow by Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall be promptly 
returned to Developer. 

4. In partial consideration of this Third Amendment, Twenty-Two Thousand, Five 
Hundred Dollars ($22,500) of the amount held by the Title Company in escrow shall be converted 
to being non-refundable to Buyer except in the event of Seller default or failure by Purchaser to 
elect to proceed to closing as set forth in Paragraph 3 above.  

  5. That to the extent inconsistent with the Agreement, this Third Amendment shall 
supersede same and control the contractual relationship by and between the parties.  In all other 



24134190v1  

respects, the Agreement is hereby ratified and it is acknowledged that no default exists thereunder. 
This Third Amendment may be signed in one or more counterparts. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Third Amendment as of the last 
day and date below written. 

"City" 
 
CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS, a Kansas 
 municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:______________________________ 
Title:_____________________________ 
 
 
Date: ____________________________ 

"Purchaser" 
 
BRINSHORE DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a limited 
liability company 
 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
Printed Name:___________________________ 
Title:__________________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________________ 

  
 


	CC Agenda 7-15-15 - Google Docs
	AI - 2015 Chip Seal Program - Google Docs
	1 - 2015 Chip Seal Program
	2 - 2015 Chip Seal
	AI - 2015 Mill & Overlay Program - Google Docs
	1 - 2015 Mill & Overlay Program
	2 - 2015 Mill & Overlay
	AI_ Real Estate Purchase Agreement - Brinshore - Google Docs

